

ALBANY PORT DISTRICT COMMISSION MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING

DECEMBER 15, 2021

Chairperson Steffens called the meeting to order. In attendance were Commissioners Coffey, Tagliento and Abriel. Also present were CEO Hendrick, General Counsel Jordan, CCO Daly, CFO Stuto, Maritime Business Development Manager Vasil, Director of Security Williams and Administrative Assistant DiLillo.

Chairperson Steffens took a moment to recognize and congratulate Maritime Business Development Manager Tony Vasil who will be retiring from his position with the Port of Albany on December 31, 2021. She thanked Tony for all his dedicated hard work and expertise that he brought to the Port Team. She also thanked him for his military service as well. Chairperson Steffens noted that Tony had been inducted as a lifetime member of the North Atlantic Port Association.

Manager Vasil thanked Chairperson Steffens. He mentioned that he has worked at the Port for more than 30 years, first as a contractor then on staff. Manager Vasil stated that he enjoyed working with various Board Members and staff throughout his time at the Port and he is very proud of all the results that he and his colleagues have achieved over the years.

Chairperson Steffens introduced the minutes of the November 17, 2021 Board meeting. No changes were made to the minutes. Chairperson Steffens called for a motion to approve the minutes. A motion was made by Commissioner Abriel seconded by Commissioner Tagliento and passed unanimously.

PUBLIC COMMENT

No public comments were made.

AUDIT COMMITTEE UPDATE

Chairperson Steffens reported that the Audit Committee met with Brian Kearns, Alex Zhang and Jessica Blaha from UHY Advisors. Mr. Kearns and Mr. Zhang provided the committee with an overview of the audit process, discussing the objectives, responsibilities, deliverables, timeline and the new auditing requirements. Chairperson Steffens noted that the committee will meet again with UHY Advisors in March for the Audit Report.

FINANCIAL UPDATE

CFO Stuto presented an update of the financials as of November 30, 2021 and the year-end projections. There were no significant changes from the previous month. Operating revenue is forecasted to remain over budget by 10% through the end of the year. The expense forecast variance has increased due to updates in the projections of consultant fees, service contracts and education and training. CFO Stuto expects depreciation to come in below budget due to Warehouse C not being depreciated until 2022. Grant and capital funding is projected to be under budget due to timing in the spending of the TIGER grant. Overall, the change in net position is forecasted to be 4% below the 2021 Budget. This slight decline is directly affected by the grant revenue fluctuation offset by the increase in revenue and expenses.

CEO UPDATE

CEO Hendrick updated the Board on the following:

- Met with Albany County Legislator Carolyn McLaughlin as well as representatives from the DEC, EPA and other federal agencies related to the South End community. CEO Hendrick noted that Ms. McLaughlin spoke highly of the Port staff's efforts in addressing issues and maintaining open communication with the South End neighborhoods.
- Staff met with the Army Corp. of Engineers, DEC and representatives of the Tribal Nations relating to the development of the 80 acre site in the Town of Bethlehem.
- Port Team met with the Hudson River Safety & Navigation Committee, River Keeper and private boaters to discuss movement on the river, addressing barge traffic.
- CEO Hendrick was reelected as president of the North Atlantic Port Association.
- This month a shipment of 12,000 tons of steel coils came into the Port. CEO Hendrick noted that he is hopeful that this continues to grow as the Port moves forward.

Commissioner Coffey asked what the next steps are for the South End community. CEO Hendrick noted that the Port Team will continue to host meetings for the public to openly discuss any areas of concern, focusing on vehicle traffic, air quality and workforce development.

REAL PROPERTY/DEVELOPMENT UPDATE

CCO Daly reported that Anne Pellerin, co-owner of Marmen, along with her HR Manager attended various meetings with Port Staff, Mayor Sheehan, Empire State Development, representatives from Hudson Valley Community College, Capital Region BOCES and various workforce development partners to discuss how all these key partners can assist and collaborate in developing a successful workforce process.

CCO Daly reported that the permitting process for the offshore wind project is in the public comment period which is now open with the Town of Bethlehem. The permit application for the project components related to the City of Albany has been submitted to the City of Albany

Planning Department. Port staff will be hosting a Public Hearing on December 21st in the South End related to the Port expansion project, providing a project overview but focusing on specifics of the project development process and community engagement. Port Staff will also be joining the next South End Neighborhood Association meeting to provide a follow up on the progress of the project.

2022 COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS

Counsel Jordan presented Resolution 24-2021 relating to the appointment of Committee Members for 2022. Chairperson Steffens noted that the proposed Committee appointments were discussed at the November Governance Committee meeting and that the Committee recommended that the Board approve the resolution as presented. Chairperson Steffens called for a motion to approve Resolution 24-2021. A motion was made by Commissioner Coffey, seconded by Commissioner Abriel and passed unanimously.

SPECIAL COUNSEL/BOND AND PROJECT FINANCING COUNSEL SERVICES

CFO Stuto presented Resolution 25-2021 relating to Special Counsel/Bond and Project Financial Counsel Services. The APDC had previously retained Hodgson Russ, LLP through a competitive evaluation process for these services. Hodgson Russ has provided their expertise in assisting the APDC team with the Port expansion project. The Port requires the continued expertise and assistance of Hodgson Russ, LLP to continue to work with and on behalf of the APDC and Marmen, Inc., Welcon A/S and Equinor Wind US LLC to develop the operating and financing structure necessary to ensure a successful project and long term tenancy. Port staff recommended that the Board approve the continued retention of Hodgson Russ to provide Special Counsel/Bond and Project Financing Counsel Services at a cost not to exceed \$100,000 for the next phase of the development. Chairperson Steffens called for a motion to approve Resolution 25-2021. A motion was made by Commissioner Coffey, seconded by Commissioner Abriel and passed unanimously.

AUTHORIZING UTILIZATION OF COOPERATIVE PURCHASING CONTRACTS

Counsel Jordan presented Resolution 26-2021 relating to the utilization of cooperative purchasing contracts. The APDC has investigated the opportunities afforded by the State Finance Law and has determined that it would be advantageous for the APDC to "piggyback" off of cooperative purchasing contracts when purchasing materials, equipment, supplies and services. Therefore, Port staff recommended that the APDC Board authorize the utilization of cooperative purchasing contracts to provide materials, equipment, supplies or services to the APDC. Chairperson Steffens called for a motion to approve Resolution 26-2021. A motion was made by Commissioner Coffey, seconded by Commissioner Abriel and passed unanimously.

MARITIME BUSINESS ASSESSMENT

Manager Vasil provided the Board with the Ships, Barges and Tonnage Report and the Longshore Hours Report for November 2021. He reported that ships and barges are up 15%, tonnage is up 18% and longshore hours are up 28% from this time last year.

Commissioner Coffey thanked Manager Vasil for the education that he provided to the Board Members over the years giving them a greater perspective of the maritime industry as well as the supply chain process.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

Chairperson Steffens called for a motion to enter into Executive Session for the purpose of discussing the proposed sale, acquisition or lease of real property. A motion was made by Commissioner Coffey, seconded by Commissioner Tagliento and passed unanimously.

No action was taken during Executive Session. The regular meeting resumed.

OTHER BUSINESS

PROJECT LABOR AGREEMENT FASIBILITY STUDY

CCO Daly presented Resolution 27-2021 relating to a Project Labor Agreement Feasibility Study. Three responses were received from the RFP. After review of the proposals it was recommended that the Board award the contract to Hill International. Some discussion followed. Chairperson Steffens called for a motion to approve Resolution 27-2021, awarding the contract to Hill International at a cost not to exceed \$29,000. A motion was made by Commissioner Abriel, seconded by Commissioner Tagliento and passed unanimously.

LEASE NEGOTIATION AGREEMENT

Counsel Jordan presented Resolution 28-2021 relating to a lease negotiation agreement. He noted that Port staff has identified additional land for lease or purchase. After some discussion, the Port Team recommended that the Board authorize the CEO to enter into lease negotiations for a 90 day due diligence period regarding a 42.5 acre site. Chairperson Steffens called for a motion to approve Resolution 28-2021. A motion was made by Commissioner Coffey, seconded by Commissioner Abriel and passed unanimously.

NEXT MEETING

Chairperson Steffens informed all those in attendance that the next meeting of the APDC Board of Commissioners will be held on Wednesday, January 26, 2022 immediately following the Governance Committee Meeting held at 12 noon.

Chairperson Steffens called for a motion to adjourn the meeting. A motion was made by Commissioner Coffey, seconded by Commissioner Abriel and passed unanimously.